

CONTRACT
BETWEEN
COUNTY OF ORANGE
AND
ORANGE COUNTY HUMAN RELATIONS COUNCIL
FOR
SUPPORT OF
OC HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION PROGRAMS &
SERVICES



REDLINE ←

Formatted: Right

CONTRACT

Table of Contents 2
 Recitals 5

ARTICLES

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Coordination/Administration of CONTRACT6
 2. Scope of Service6
 3. Contract Term6
 4. Contingency of Funds6
 5. Fiscal Appropriations6
 6. Payment Requirements7
 7. Adjustment-Scope of Services7
 8. Amendments – Changes/Extra Work7
 9. Breach of CONTRACT8
 10. Conditions Affecting Work8
 11. Conflict of Interest – CONTRACTOR’s Personnel8
 12. Conflict of Interest – COUNTY Personnel8
 13. Consulting CONTRACT – Follow On Work8
 14. CONTRACTOR Personnel9
 15. CONTRACTOR’s Project Manager and Key Personnel9
 16. CONTRACTOR’s Records9
 17. Data – Title To9
 18. County Of Orange Child Support9
 19. EDD Independent CONTRACTOR Reporting Requirements10
 20. Emergency/Declared Disaster Requirements10
 21. Drug-Free Workplace10
 22. Disputes – CONTRACT10
 23. Gratuities11
 24. Termination – Orderly11
 25. News / Information Release12
 26. Notices12
 27. Project Manager, COUNTY12
 28. Reports/Meetings12
 29. Publication12
 30. Errors and Omissions13
 31. Signature in Counterparts13

REDLINE ←

Formatted: Right

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. Governing Law and Venue14

B. Entire Contract14

C. Amendments14

D. Taxes14

E. Delivery14

F. Acceptance/Payment14

G. Warranty14

H. Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement15

I. Assignment or Sub-Contracting15

J. Non-Discrimination15

K. Termination15

L. Consent to Breach not Waiver15

M. Remedies Not Exclusive15

N. Independent Contractor15

O. Performance16

P. Insurance16

Q. Bills and Liens19

R. Changes19

S. Change of Ownership19

T. Force Majeure19

U. Confidentiality20

V. Compliance with Law20

W. Freight (F.O.B)20

X. Pricing20

Y. Waiver of Jury Trial20

Z. Terms and Conditions20

AA. Headings20

BB. Severability20

CC. Calendar Days20

DD. Attorney Fees20

EE. Interpretation20

FF. Authority21

GG. Employee Eligibility Verification21

HH. Indemnification Provisions21

II. Audits/Inspections21

Signature Page23

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

ATTACHMENTS / EXHIBITS

Attachment A – Scope of Services

Attachment B – Budget

~~Exhibit 1 – County of Orange Child Support Enforcement Certification~~

Exhibit ~~2~~1 – OC Community Resources Reimbursement Policy

Exhibit ~~3~~2 – Drug-Free Workplace

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

This Agreement Number ~~4718~~-28-0025-HRC, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACT" is made between the County of Orange, a political subdivision of the State of California, with a place of business at 1770 North Broadway, Santa Ana, CA 92706-2642; (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY") and Orange County Human Relations Council, a nonprofit corporation, in the State of California, with a place of business at ~~1300 S. Grand Avenue, Bldg. B, Santa Ana, CA 92705~~ 1801 E. Edinger Ave., Suite 115, Santa Ana, CA 92705, DUNS Number 039841668; (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR") with COUNTY and CONTRACTOR sometimes referred to as "PARTY," or collectively as "PARTIES."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR responded to a Request for Proposal for FY 2017-2020 OC Human Relations Commission Programs & Services and was deemed eligible for funding;

WHEREAS, COUNTY, has appropriated County General Funds to engage CONTRACTOR to provide support staff for OC Human Relations Programs and Services described herein to the residents of Orange County;

WHEREAS, OC Community Resources – Director or Designee, hereinafter referred to as "ADMINISTRATOR" shall administer this CONTRACT as necessary; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is responsible for the administration, implementation, and coordination of Human Relation Programs and Services and will identify a CEO designated liaison from CONTRACTOR; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has approved \$252,000 (Two Hundred Fifty-Two Thousand Dollars and 00 cents) to pay CONTRACTOR as specifically described in Budget, attached hereto as Attachment "B" and incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide support staff for Human Relation Programs and Services for the period of July 1, ~~2017-2018~~ through June 30, ~~2018~~2019, under the same terms, conditions and scope of work hereinafter set forth;

WHEREAS, COUNTY Board of Supervisors has authorized the OC Community Resources Director or his designee to enter into this CONTRACT to provide information and referral services to Orange County residents with the CONTRACTOR; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES mutually agree as follows:

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

ARTICLES

Terms and Conditions:

1. **Coordination/Administration of CONTRACT:** COUNTY's OC Community Resources Director or designee (hereinafter referred to as "**DIRECTOR**"), and OC Community Services project coordinator (hereinafter referred to as "**COUNTY'S PROJECT MANAGER**") shall assume responsibilities through coordinating the grant, and its Regulation for services provided by the COUNTY. The COUNTY's Contract Manager (hereinafter referred to as "**CONTRACT MANAGER**") shall administer this CONTRACT as is necessary or reasonable to comply with COUNTY policies.
2. **Scope of Services:** This CONTRACT specifies the contractual terms and conditions by which the COUNTY will procure services from CONTRACTOR as further detailed in the Scope of Services, identified and incorporated herein by this reference as Attachment A.
3. **Contract Term:** This CONTRACT shall be effective from July 1, ~~2017-2018~~ through June 30, ~~2018~~2019, unless otherwise terminated by the COUNTY.
 - A. The COUNTY will reclaim any unused funds for reallocation to other COUNTY approved programs.
 - B. The COUNTY does not have to give a reason, should it decide not to renew.
 - C. Prior to, and at the effective date of the termination of this CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with the COUNTY in transition of the operation of the support and services to the COUNTY or the COUNTY designated CONTRACTOR, in order to facilitate and effectuate an orderly and systematic transition of the CONTRACTOR's duties and activities as they pertain under this CONTRACT.
 - D. Upon termination of this CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR shall forthwith deliver to the COUNTY such CONTRACT's, documents, accounting records, and all other related records pertaining to services provided under this CONTRACT, as may be reasonably requested, and furnish all such information and take all actions as deemed necessary.
4. **Contingency of Funds:** CONTRACTOR acknowledges that funding or portions of funding for this CONTRACT may also be contingent upon the receipt of funds from, and/or appropriation of funds by the State of California to COUNTY; and inclusion of sufficient funding for the services hereunder in the budget approved by approved by COUNTY'S Board of Supervisors for each fiscal year covered by this CONTRACT. If such funding and/or appropriations are not forthcoming, or are otherwise limited, COUNTY may immediately terminate or modify this CONTRACT without penalty to the COUNTY.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

5. **Fiscal Appropriations:** This CONTRACT is subject to and contingent upon applicable budgetary appropriations being approved by the County of Orange Board of Supervisors for each fiscal year during the term of this CONTRACT. If such appropriations are not approved, the CONTRACT will be terminated, reduce COUNTY's maximum obligation, or modify the CONTRACT, without penalty to the COUNTY.

6. **Payment Requirements:**

6.1 CONTRACT Amount: It is expressly agreed and understood that the total amount to be paid by COUNTY under this CONTRACT shall not exceed the total COUNTY funding as set forth in Attachment "B", Budget to ~~CONTRACTOR~~ attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

6.2 Payment of Project Activities: COUNTY will reimburse CONTRACTOR for eligible project-related costs only. CONTRACTOR shall submit requests for reimbursement to COUNTY on a quarterly basis beginning on or after July 1, ~~2017~~2018, and must provide adequate documentation as required by COUNTY in accordance with the OC COMMUNITY RESOURCES CONTRACT REIMBURSEMENT POLICY, as set forth in Exhibit ~~21~~, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. In addition, CONTRACTOR will provide a monthly performance report by the 20th of the month for the preceding month of services, as prescribed by COUNTY. Failure to provide any of the required documentation and reporting will cause a breach of CONTRACT as defined in Paragraph 9, below.

6.3 CONTRACTOR will have forty-five (45) days following the expiration of the CONTRACT to submit outstanding invoices for reimbursement of eligible costs incurred during the CONTRACT period. After the forty- five (45) day period for submitting invoices has expired, COUNTY shall reallocate the remaining balance under this CONTRACT for other program purposes and CONTRACTOR shall be ineligible for any further reimbursement.

7. **Adjustment –Scope of Services:**

No adjustments made to the Scope of Services will be authorized without prior written approval of the COUNTY assigned CONTRACT MANAGER. CONTRACTOR agrees that COUNTY may, at its sole discretion, amend this CONTRACT to conform to federal, State or local governmental guideline, policies, and available funding amounts.

If any amendment results in a change in the funding amount, CONTRACTOR Scope of Services, or schedule of activities to be undertaken as part of this CONTRACT, such modification will be incorporated only by written amendment executed by DIRECTOR and CONTRACTOR.

8. **Amendments – Changes/Extra Work:** The CONTRACTOR shall make no changes to this CONTRACT without the COUNTY's written consent. In the event that there are new or unforeseen requirements, the COUNTY with the CONTRACTOR's concurrence has the discretion to request official changes at any time without changing the intent of this CONTRACT.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

If COUNTY-initiated changes or changes in laws or government regulations affect price, the CONTRACTOR's ability to deliver services, or the project schedule, the CONTRACTOR shall give the COUNTY written notice no later than seven (7) calendar days from the date the law or regulation went into effect or the date the change was proposed by the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR was notified of the change. Such changes shall be agreed to in writing and incorporated into a CONTRACT Amendment; said Amendment shall be issued by the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER, shall require the mutual consent of all PARTIES, and may prohibit the CONTRACTOR from proceeding with the work as set forth in this CONTRACT.

- 9. Breach of CONTRACT:** The failure of the CONTRACTOR to comply with any of the provisions, covenants or conditions of this CONTRACT shall be a material breach of this CONTRACT. In such event the COUNTY may, and in addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise specified in this CONTRACT:

- 9.1 Terminate the CONTRACT immediately, pursuant to Paragraph K herein;
- 9.2 Afford the CONTRACTOR written notice of the breach and ten (10) calendar days or such shorter time that may be specified in this CONTRACT within which to cure the breach;
- 9.3 Discontinue payment to the CONTRACTOR for and during the period in which the CONTRACTOR is in breach; and
- 9.4 Seek a refund of monies paid to CONTRACTOR by an amount equal to one twelfth (1/12) of the annual payment for terminated services for each month remaining in the CONTRACT term, which shall be computed based upon the date of written termination.

- 10. Conditions Affecting Work:** The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for taking all steps reasonably necessary, to ascertain the nature and location of the work to be performed under this CONTRACT; and to know the general conditions which can affect the work or the cost thereof. Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to do so will not relieve CONTRACTOR from responsibility for successfully performing the work without additional cost to the COUNTY. The COUNTY assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations concerning the nature, location(s) or general conditions made by any of its officers or agents prior to the execution of this CONTRACT, unless such understanding or representations by the COUNTY are expressly stated in the CONTRACT.

- 11. Conflict of Interest – CONTRACTOR's Personnel:** The CONTRACTOR shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with the best interests of the COUNTY. This obligation shall apply to the CONTRACTOR; the CONTRACTOR's employees, agents, and relatives; sub-tier contractors; and third parties associated with accomplishing work and services hereunder. The CONTRACTOR's efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing precautions to prevent its employees or agents from making, receiving, providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to appear to influence individuals to act contrary to the best interests of the COUNTY.

CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by any federal, State and/or local regulations with respect to conflicts of interest, and covenants that it presently has no financial interest and shall not acquire any financial interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this CONTRACT.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

12. **Conflict of Interest – COUNTY Personnel:** The County of Orange Board of Supervisors' policy prohibits its employees from engaging in activities involving a conflict of interest. The CONTRACTOR shall not, during the period of this CONTRACT, employ any COUNTY employee for any purpose.
13. **Consulting CONTRACT – Follow-On Work:** No person or firm or subsidiary thereof who has been awarded a consulting services CONTRACT or a CONTRACT which includes a consulting component may be awarded a CONTRACT for the provision of services, the delivery of goods or supplies, or the provision of any other related action which is required, suggested, or otherwise deemed appropriate as an end product of the consulting services CONTRACT. Therefore, any consultant that contracts with a COUNTY agency/department to develop a feasibility study or to provide formal recommendations is precluded from contracting for any work recommended in the study or included in the recommendations.
14. **CONTRACTOR Personnel:** The CONTRACTOR warrants that all persons employed to provide service under this CONTRACT have satisfactory past work records indicating their ability to accept the kind of responsibility anticipated under this CONTRACT.
15. **CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT MANAGER and Key Personnel:** CONTRACTOR shall appoint a PROJECT MANAGER to direct the CONTRACTOR's efforts in fulfilling CONTRACTOR's obligations under this CONTRACT. The CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT MANAGER and key personnel shall be assigned to this project for the duration of this CONTRACT and shall diligently pursue all work and services to meet the project time lines. Key personnel are those individuals who report directly to the CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT MANAGER.
16. **CONTRACTOR'S Records:** The CONTRACTOR shall keep an accurate record of time expended by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this CONTRACT. Such record shall be available for periodic inspection by the COUNTY at reasonable times. Such records will be retained for five (5) years after the expiration or termination of this CONTRACT.
17. **Data – Title To:** All materials, documents, data or information obtained from the COUNTY data files or any COUNTY medium furnished to the CONTRACTOR in the performance of this CONTRACT will at all times remain the property of the COUNTY. Such data or information may not be used or copied for direct or indirect use by the CONTRACTOR after completion or termination of this CONTRACT without the express written consent of the COUNTY. All materials, documents, data or information, including copies, must be returned to the COUNTY at the end of this CONTRACT.
18. **County ~~Of~~ Orange Child Support Enforcement:** CONTRACTOR certifies it is in full compliance with all applicable federal and state reporting requirements regarding its employees and with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment and will continue to be in compliance throughout the term of the CONTRACT with the County of Orange. Failure to comply shall constitute a material breach of the CONTRACT and failure to cure such breach within 60 calendar days of notice from the COUNTY shall constitute grounds for termination of the CONTRACT. In order to comply with the child support enforcement requirements of the County of Orange, within ten (10) days of award of CONTRACT, the selected CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish to the CONTRACT administrator, the Purchasing Agent, or the agency/department deputy purchasing agent:

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

~~REDLINE~~

Formatted: Right

- a. ~~In the case of an individual CONTRACTOR, his/her name, date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address;~~
- b. ~~In the case of a CONTRACTOR doing business in a form other than as an individual, the name, date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address of each individual who owns an interest of ten (10) percent or more in the contracting entity; and~~
- c. ~~A certification that the CONTRACTOR has fully complied with all applicable Federal and State reporting requirements regarding its employees; and~~
- d. ~~A certification that the CONTRACTOR has fully complied with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment and will continue to so comply.~~

~~Failure of the CONTRACTOR to timely submit the data and/or certifications required may result in the CONTRACT being awarded to another CONTRACTOR. In the event a CONTRACT has been issued, failure of the CONTRACTOR to comply with all Federal, State, and Local reporting requirements for child support enforcement or to comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment shall constitute a material breach of the CONTRACT. Failure to cure such breach within ten (10) calendar days of notice from the COUNTY shall constitute grounds for termination of the CONTRACT.~~

19. **EDD Independent Contractor Reporting Requirements:** Effective January 1, 2001, the County of Orange is required to file in accordance with subdivision (a) of Section 6041A of the Internal Revenue Code federal Form 1099-Misc for services received from a "service provider" to whom the COUNTY pays \$600 or more or with whom the COUNTY enters into a CONTRACT for \$600 or more within a single calendar year. The purpose of this reporting requirement is to increase child support collection by helping to locate parents who are delinquent in their child support obligations ~~as set forth in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.~~

The term "service provider" is defined in California Unemployment Insurance Code Section 1088.8, subparagraph B.2 as "an individual who is not an employee of the service recipient for California purposes and who received compensation or executes a CONTRACT contract for services performed for that service recipient within or without the state." The term is further defined by the California Employment Development Department to refer specifically to independent contractors. An independent contractor is defined as "an individual who is not an employee of the government entity for California purposes and who receives compensation or executes a CONTRACT contract for services performed for that ... government entity either in or outside of California."

The reporting requirement does not apply to corporations, general partnerships, limited liability partnerships, and limited liability companies.

Additional information on this reporting requirement can be found at the California Employment Development Department web site located at <http://www.edd.ca.gov/taxier.htm> Employer Services.htm.

20. **Emergency/Declared Disaster Requirements:** In the event of an emergency or if Orange County is declared a disaster area by the COUNTY, State or federal government, this CONTRACT may be subjected to unusual usage. The CONTRACTOR shall service the COUNTY during such an emergency or declared disaster under the same terms and

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

conditions that apply during non-emergency/disaster conditions. The pricing quoted by the CONTRACTOR shall apply to serving the COUNTY's needs regardless of the circumstances. If the CONTRACTOR is unable to supply the goods/services under the terms of the CONTRACT, then the CONTRACTOR shall provide proof of such disruption and a copy of the invoice for the goods/services from the CONTRACTOR's supplier(s). Additional profit margin as a result of supplying goods/services during an emergency or a declared disaster shall not be permitted. In the event of an emergency or declared disaster, emergency purchase order numbers will be assigned. All applicable invoices from the CONTRACTOR shall show both the emergency purchase order number and the CONTRACT number.

21. Drug-Free Workplace: The CONTRACTOR hereby certifies compliance with government Code Section 8355 in matters relating to proving a drug-free workplace as set forth in Exhibit 3, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

22. Disputes – CONTRACT:

A. The PARTIES shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve potential disputes informally. If the dispute concerning a question of fact arising under the terms of this CONTRACT is not disposed of in a reasonable period of time by the CONTRACTOR's PROJECT MANAGER and the COUNTY's PROJECT MANAGER, such matter shall be brought to the attention of the CONTRACT MANAGER Agent by way of the following process:

- i. The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the agency/department assigned COUNTY CONTRACT MANAGER a written demand for a final decision regarding the disposition of any dispute between the PARTIES arising under, related to, or involving this CONTRACT, unless the COUNTY, on its own initiative, has already rendered such a final decision.
- ii. The CONTRACTOR's written demand shall be fully supported by factual information, and, if such demand involves a cost adjustment to the CONTRACT, the CONTRACTOR shall include with the demand a written statement signed by a senior official indicating that the demand is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the CONTRACT adjustment for which the CONTRACTOR believes the COUNTY is liable.

B. Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to, or involving this CONTRACT, the CONTRACTOR agrees to diligently proceed with the provision of services under this CONTRACT. The CONTRACTOR's failure to diligently proceed shall be considered a material breach of this CONTRACT.

Any final decision of the COUNTY shall be expressly identified as such, shall be in writing, and shall be signed by the COUNTY Purchasing Agent or his designee. If the County fails to render a decision within ninety (90) days after receipt of the CONTRACTOR's demand, it shall be deemed a final decision adverse to the CONTRACTOR's contentions. Nothing in this section shall be construed as affecting the COUNTY's right to terminate the CONTRACT for Cause as stated in Paragraph K herein.

23. Gratuities: The CONTRACTOR warrants that no gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the CONTRACTOR or any agent or

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

representative of the CONTRACTOR to any officer or employee of the COUNTY with a view toward securing the CONTRACT or securing favorable treatment with respect to any determinations concerning the performance of the CONTRACT. For breach or violation of this warranty, the COUNTY shall have the right to terminate the CONTRACT, either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage sustained by the COUNTY in procuring on the open market any services which the CONTRACTOR agreed to supply shall be borne and paid for by the CONTRACTOR. The rights and remedies of the COUNTY provided in the clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the CONTRACT.

- 24. Termination—Orderly:** After receipt of a termination notice from the County of Orange, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the COUNTY a termination claim, if applicable. Such claim shall be submitted promptly, but in no event later than sixty (60) days from the effective date of the termination, unless one or more extensions in writing are granted by the COUNTY upon written request of the CONTRACTOR. Upon termination COUNTY agrees to pay the CONTRACTOR for all services performed prior to termination which meet the requirements of the CONTRACT, provided, however, that such compensation plus previously paid compensation shall not exceed the total compensation set forth in the CONTRACT. Upon termination or other expiration of this CONTRACT, each PARTY shall promptly return to the other PARTY all papers, materials, and other properties of the other held by each for purposes of execution of the CONTRACT. In addition, each PARTY will assist the other PARTY in orderly termination of this CONTRACT and the transfer of all aspects, tangible and intangible, as may be necessary for the orderly, non-disruptive business continuation of each PARTY.

CONTRACTOR may terminate this CONTRACT without penalty after ninety (90) days written notice, unless otherwise specified. Notice shall be deemed served on the date of mailing. Exercise by CONTRACTOR to terminate the CONTRACT shall relieve CONTRACTOR of all further obligations after the ninety (90) day written notice; but does not release CONTRACTOR of any provision of this CONTRACT which imposes any obligation described herein up to or after termination of this CONTRACT that shall survive the termination or expiration of this CONTRACT.

- 25. News/Information Release:** The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will not issue any news releases in connection with either the award of this CONTRACT or any subsequent amendment of or effort under this CONTRACT without first obtaining review and written approval of said news releases from the COUNTY through the COUNTY's PROJECT MANAGER.
- 26. Notices:** Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called for, permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing, except through the course of the parties' project managers' routine exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of the work and services. Any written communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-person delivery, if delivery is by direct hand, or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than four calendar days after being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, whichever occurs first. The date of mailing shall count as the first day. All communications shall be addressed to the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such other address as the PARTIES hereto may designate by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

For COUNTY:
 OC Community Resources
 1770 North Broadway
 Suite 115
 Santa Ana, CA 92706
 Attn: Director

For CONTRACTOR:
~~OC Orange County~~ Human Relations Council
~~4300 S. Grand Ave., Bldg. B1801 E. Edinger Ave.,~~
 Santa Ana, CA 92705
 Attn: Chief Executive Officer

27. **Project Manager, COUNTY:** The ADMINISTRATOR shall be the PROJECT MANAGER to act as liaison between the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR during the term of this CONTRACT. The COUNTY's PROJECT MANAGER shall coordinate the activities of the COUNTY staff assigned to work with the CONTRACTOR.
28. **Reports/Meetings:** The CONTRACTOR shall develop reports and any other relevant documents necessary to complete the services and requirements as set forth in this CONTRACT. The COUNTY's PROJECT MANAGER and the CONTRACTOR's PROJECT MANAGER will meet on reasonable notice to discuss the CONTRACTOR's performance and progress under this CONTRACT. If requested, the CONTRACTOR's PROJECT MANAGER and other project personnel shall attend all meetings. The CONTRACTOR shall provide such information that is requested by the COUNTY for the purpose of monitoring progress under this CONTRACT.
29. **Publication:** No copies of sketches, schedules, written documents, computer based data, photographs, maps or graphs, including graphic art work, resulting from performance or prepared in connection with this CONTRACT, are to be released by CONTRACTOR and/or anyone acting under the supervision of CONTRACTOR to any person, partnership, company, corporation, or agency, without prior written approval by the COUNTY, except as necessary for the performance of the services of this CONTRACT. All press releases, including graphic display information to be published in newspapers, magazines, etc., are to be administered only by the COUNTY unless otherwise agreed to by both PARTIES.
30. **Errors and Omissions:** All reports, files and other documents prepared and submitted by CONTRACTOR shall be complete and shall be carefully checked by the professional(s) identified by CONTRACTOR as PROJECT MANAGER and key personnel attached hereto, prior to submission to the County. CONTRACTOR agrees that COUNTY review is discretionary and CONTRACTOR shall not assume that the COUNTY will discover errors and/or omissions. If the COUNTY discovers any errors or omissions prior to approving CONTRACTOR's reports, files and other written documents, the reports, files or documents will be returned to CONTRACTOR for correction. Should the COUNTY or others discover errors or omissions in the reports, files or other written documents submitted by CONTRACTOR after COUNTY approval thereof, COUNTY approval of CONTRACTOR's reports, files or documents shall not be used as a defense by CONTRACTOR in any action between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR, and the reports, files or documents will be returned to CONTRACTOR for correction.
31. **Signature in Counterparts:** The PARTIES agree that separate copies of the CONTRACT may be signed by each of the PARTIES, and this CONTRACT will have the same force and effect as if the original had been signed by all PARTIES.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

General Terms and Conditions:

- A. **Governing Law and Venue:** This CONTRACT has been negotiated and executed in the State of California and shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of California. In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this CONTRACT, the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange County, California, and the PARTIES hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. Furthermore, the parties specifically agree to waive any and all rights to request that an action be transferred for trial to another county.

- B. **Entire Contract:** This CONTRACT, including Attachments A and B, and Exhibits 1, ~~and 2 and 3~~, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, when accepted by the CONTRACTOR either in writing or by the shipment of any article or other commencement of performance hereunder, contains the entire CONTRACT between the PARTIES with respect to the matters herein, and there are no restrictions, promises, warranties or undertakings other than those set forth herein or referred to herein. No exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on COUNTY unless authorized by COUNTY in writing. Electronic acceptance of any additional terms, conditions or supplemental contracts by any COUNTY employee or agent, including but not limited to installers of software, shall not be valid or binding on COUNTY unless accepted in writing by CONTRACT MANAGER.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

- C. Amendments:** No alteration or variation of the terms of this CONTRACT shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties; no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on either of the parties; and no exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on COUNTY unless authorized by COUNTY in writing.
- D. Taxes:** "Intentionally Left Blank"
- E. Delivery:** Time of delivery of services is of the essence in this CONTRACT. COUNTY reserves the right to refuse any services and to cancel all or any part of the descriptions or services that do not conform to the prescribed Scope of Services. Delivery shall not be deemed to be complete until all services have actually been received and accepted in writing by COUNTY.
- F. Acceptance/Payment:** Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the COUNTY, 1) acceptance shall not be deemed complete unless in writing and until all the services have actually been received to the satisfaction of COUNTY, and 2) payment shall be made in arrears after satisfactory acceptance.
- G. Warranty:** CONTRACTOR expressly warrants that the services covered by this CONTRACT are fit for the particular purpose for which they are intended. Acceptance of this order shall constitute an agreement upon CONTRACTOR's part to indemnify, defend and hold COUNTY and COUNTY INDEMNITEES as identified in Paragraph "HH" below, and as more fully described in Paragraph "HH", harmless from liability, loss, damage and expense, including reasonable counsel fees, incurred or sustained by COUNTY by reason of the failure of the services to conform to such warranties, faulty work performance, negligent or unlawful acts, and non-compliance with any applicable state or federal codes, ordinances, orders, or statutes, including the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and the California Industrial Safety Act. Such remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies provided by law.
- H. Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement:** Unless otherwise expressly provided in this CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for clearing the right to use any patented or copyrighted materials in the performance of this CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR warrants that any software as modified through services provided hereunder will not infringe upon or violate any patent, proprietary right, or trade secret right of any third party. CONTRACTOR agrees that, in accordance with the more specific requirement contained in Paragraph "HH" below, it shall indemnify, defend and hold COUNTY and COUNTY INDEMNITEES harmless from any and all such claims and be responsible for payment of all costs, damages, penalties and expenses related to or arising from such claim(s), including, but not limited to, attorney's fees, costs and expenses.
- I. Assignment or Sub-Contracting:** The terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties. Furthermore, neither the performance of this CONTRACT nor any portion thereof may be assigned or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR without the express written consent of COUNTY. Any attempt by CONTRACTOR to assign or sub-contract the performance or any portion thereof of this CONTRACT without the express written consent of COUNTY shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this CONTRACT.
- J. Non-Discrimination:** In the performance of this CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR agrees that it will comply with the requirements of Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

not engage nor permit any subcontractors to engage in discrimination in employment of persons because of the race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex of such persons. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that a violation of this provision shall subject CONTRACTOR to all the penalties imposed for a violation of Section 1720 et seq. of the California Labor Code.

- K. Termination:** In addition to any other remedies or rights it may have by law, COUNTY has the right to terminate this CONTRACT without penalty immediately with cause or after 30 days' written notice without cause, unless otherwise specified. Cause shall be defined as any breach of CONTRACT, any misrepresentation or fraud on the part of the CONTRACTOR. Exercise by COUNTY of its right to terminate the CONTRACT shall relieve COUNTY of all further obligations.
- L. Consent to Breach Not Waiver:** No term or provision of this CONTRACT shall be deemed waived and no breach excused, unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express or implied, shall not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach.
- M. Remedies Not Exclusive:** The remedies for breach set forth in this CONTRACT are cumulative as to one another and as to any other provided by law, rather than exclusive; and the expression of certain remedies in this CONTRACT does not preclude resort by either party to any other remedies provided by law.
- N. Independent CONTRACTOR:** CONTRACTOR shall be considered an independent CONTRACTOR and neither CONTRACTOR nor its employees; nor anyone working under CONTRACTOR shall be considered an agent or an employee of COUNTY. Neither CONTRACTOR nor its employees; nor anyone working under CONTRACTOR shall qualify for workers' compensation or other fringe benefits of any kind through COUNTY.
- O. Performance:** CONTRACTOR shall perform all work under this CONTRACT, taking necessary steps and precautions to perform the work to COUNTY's satisfaction. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical assurance, timely completion and coordination of all documentation and other services furnished by the CONTRACTOR under this CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR shall perform all work diligently, carefully, and in a good and workman-like manner; shall furnish all labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, materials, and supplies necessary therefore; shall at its sole expense obtain and maintain all permits and licenses required by public authorities, including those of COUNTY required in its governmental capacity, in connection with performance of the work; and, if permitted to subcontract, shall be fully responsible for all work performed by sub-CONTRACTORS.
- P. Insurance:**

Insurance Provisions

Prior to the provision of services under this Contract, the Contractor agrees to purchase all required insurance at Contractor's expense, including all endorsements required herein, necessary to satisfy the County that the insurance provisions of this Contract have been complied with. Contractor agrees to keep such insurance coverage, Certificates of Insurance, and endorsements on deposit with the County during the entire term of this Contract. In addition, all subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for Contractor.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall be covered under Contractor's insurance as an Additional Insured or maintain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for Contractor. Contractor shall not allow subcontractors to work if subcontractors have less than the level of coverage required by County from Contractor under this Contract. It is the obligation of Contractor to provide notice of the insurance requirements to every subcontractor and to receive proof of insurance prior to allowing any subcontractor to begin work. Such proof of insurance must be maintained by Contractor through the entirety of this Contract for inspection by County representative(s) at any reasonable time.

All self-insured retentions (SIRs) shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of Insurance. Any self-insured retention (SIR) in an amount in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000) shall specifically be approved by the County's Risk Manager, or designee, upon review of Contractor's current audited financial report. If Contractor's SIR is approved, Contractor, in addition to, and without limitation of, any other indemnity provision(s) in this Agreement/Contract, agrees to all of the following:

- 1) In addition to the duty to indemnify and hold the County harmless against any and all liability, claim, demand or suit resulting from Contractor's, its agents, employee's or subcontractor's performance of this Agreement, Contractor shall defend the County at its sole cost and expense with counsel approved by Board of Supervisors against same; and
- 2) Contractor's duty to defend, as stated above, shall be absolute and irrespective of any duty to indemnify or hold harmless; and
- 3) The provisions of California Civil Code Section 2860 shall apply to any and all actions to which the duty to defend stated above applies, and the Contractor's SIR provision shall be interpreted as though the Contractor was an insurer and the County was the insured.

If the Contractor fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the County for the full term of this Contract, the County may terminate this Contract.

Qualified Insurer

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer with a minimum rating of A- (Secure A.M. Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category as determined by the most current edition of the **Best's Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or ambest.com**). It is preferred, but not mandatory, that the insurer be licensed to do business in the state of California (California Admitted Carrier).

If the insurance carrier does not have an A.M. Best Rating of A-/VIII, the CEO/Office of Risk Management retains the right to approve or reject a carrier after a review of the company's performance and financial ratings.

The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Contractor shall provide the minimum limits and coverage as set forth below:

Coverage

Minimum Limits

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

Commercial General Liability	\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 aggregate
Automobile Liability including coverage For owned, non-owned and hired vehicles	\$1,000,000 per occurrence
Workers Compensation	Statutory
Employers Liability Insurance	\$1,000,000 per occurrence
Network Security & Privacy* Liability	\$1,000,000 per claims made
Professional Liability	\$1,000,000 per claims made \$1,000,000 aggregate
Sexual Misconduct	\$1,000,000 per occurrence
Employee Dishonesty* (Client Coverage)	Funding Amount Advanced

*Network Security & Privacy Liability is required if Contractor has access to sensitive data. Employee Dishonesty coverage may be required if funding is advanced.

Required Coverage Forms

The Commercial General Liability coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing liability coverage at least as broad.

The Business Auto Liability coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 0012, CA 00 20, or a substitute form providing coverage at least as broad.

Required Endorsements

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements, which shall accompany the Certificate of Insurance:

- 1) An Additional Insured endorsement using ISO form CG 20 26 04 13 or a form at least as broad naming the ***County of Orange its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees*** as Additional Insureds, or provide blanket coverage, which will state ***AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN AGREEMENT***.
- 2) A primary non-contributing endorsement using ISO form CG 20 01 04 13, or a form at least as broad evidencing that the Contractor's insurance is primary and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

The Network Security and Privacy Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements which shall accompany the Certificate of Insurance:

- 1) An Additional Insured endorsement naming the **County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees** as Additional Insureds for its vicarious liability.
- 2) A primary and non-contributing endorsement evidencing that the Contractor's insurance is primary and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing.
- 3) The Workers' Compensation policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement waiving all rights of subrogation against the **County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees** or provide blanket coverage, which will state **AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN AGREEMENT. (Required if services are provided at a County Facility.)**

All insurance policies required by this Contract shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or employment.

The County of Orange shall be the loss payee on the Employee Dishonesty coverage. A Loss Payee endorsement evidencing that the County of Orange is a Loss Payee shall accompany the Certificate of Insurance. (Only include this provision when Employee Dishonesty Insurance is required).

Contractor shall notify County in writing within thirty (30) days of any policy cancellation and ten (10) days for non-payment of premium and provide a copy of the cancellation notice to County. Failure to provide written notice of cancellation may constitute a material breach of the Contract, upon which the County may suspend or terminate this Contract.

If Contractor's Professional Liability and Network Security & Privacy Liability are "Claims Made" policies, Contractor shall agree to maintain coverage for two (2) years following the completion of the Contract. (Only include this provision when Professional Liability, Technology Errors & Omissions and/or Network Security & Privacy Liability Insurance are required. Only reference the type(s) of insurance required in the contract.)

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interests clause also known as a "separation of insureds" clause (standard in the ISO CG 0001 policy).

Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the agency/department address listed on the solicitation.

If the Contractor fails to provide the insurance certificates and endorsements within seven (7) days of notification by CEO/Purchasing or the agency/department purchasing division, award may be made to the next qualified vendor.

County expressly retains the right to require Contractor to increase or decrease insurance of any of the above insurance types throughout the term of this Contract. Any increase or

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

decrease in insurance will be as deemed by County of Orange Risk Manager as appropriate to adequately protect County.

County shall notify Contractor in writing of changes in the insurance requirements. If Contractor does not deposit copies of acceptable Certificates of Insurance and endorsements with County incorporating such changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, this Contract may be in breach without further notice to Contractor, and County shall be entitled to all legal remedies.

The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit Contractor's liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification provisions and requirements of this Contract, nor act in any way to reduce the policy coverage and limits available from the insurer.

- Q. Bills and Liens:** "Intentionally Left Blank"
- R. Changes:** CONTRACTOR shall make no changes in the work or perform any additional work without the COUNTY's specific written approval.
- S. Change of Ownership:** CONTRACTOR agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of CONTRACTOR's business prior to completion of this CONTRACT, the new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other transfer to assume CONTRACTOR's duties and obligations contained in this CONTRACT and complete them to the satisfaction of COUNTY.
- T. Force Majeure:** CONTRACTOR shall not be assessed with liquidated damages or unsatisfactory performance penalties during any delay beyond the time named for the performance of this CONTRACT caused by any act of God, war, civil disorder, employment strike or other cause beyond its reasonable control, provided CONTRACTOR gives written notice of the cause of the delay to COUNTY within thirty-six (36) hours of the start of the delay and CONTRACTOR avails himself of any available remedies.
- U. Confidentiality:** CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all COUNTY and COUNTY-related records and information pursuant to all statutory laws relating to privacy and confidentiality that currently exist or exist at any time during the term of this CONTRACT. All such records and information shall be considered confidential and kept confidential by CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR's staff, agents and employees.
- V. Compliance with Laws:** CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that services to be provided under this CONTRACT shall fully comply, at CONTRACTOR's expense, with all standards, laws, statutes, restrictions, ordinances, requirements, and regulations (collectively "laws"), including, but not limited to those issued by COUNTY in its governmental capacity and all other laws applicable to the services at the time services are provided to and accepted by COUNTY. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that COUNTY is relying on CONTRACTOR to ensure such compliance, and pursuant to the requirements of Paragraph "HH" below, CONTRACTOR agrees that it shall defend, indemnify and hold COUNTY and COUNTY INDEMNITEES harmless from all liability, damages, costs, and expenses arising from or related to a violation of such
- W. Freight (F.O.B):** "Intentionally Left Blank"
- X. Pricing:** "Intentionally Left Blank"
- Y. Waiver of Jury Trial:** "Intentionally Left Blank"

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

- Z. Terms and Conditions:** CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it has read and agrees to all terms and conditions included in this CONTRACT.
- AA. Headings:** The various headings and numbers herein, the grouping of provisions of this CONTRACT into separate clauses and paragraphs, and the organization hereof are for the purpose of convenience only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning hereof.
- BB. Severability:** If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this CONTRACT is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.
- CC. Calendar Days:** Any reference to the word "day" or "days" herein shall mean calendar day or calendar days, respectively, unless otherwise expressly provided.
- DD. Attorney Fees:** In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this CONTRACT, or where any provision hereof is validly asserted as a defense, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees, costs and expenses.
- EE. Interpretation:** This CONTRACT has been negotiated at arm's length and between persons sophisticated and knowledgeable in the matters dealt with in this CONTRACT. In addition, each PARTY has been represented by experienced and knowledgeable independent legal counsel of their own choosing or has knowingly declined to seek such counsel despite being encouraged and given the opportunity to do so. Each PARTY further acknowledges that they have not been influenced to any extent whatsoever in executing this CONTRACT by any other PARTY hereto or by any person representing them, or both. Accordingly, any rule or law (including California Civil Code Section 1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities in this CONTRACT against the PARTY that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this CONTRACT shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the PARTIES and this CONTRACT.
- FF. Authority:** The PARTIES to this CONTRACT represent and warrant that this CONTRACT has been duly authorized and executed and constitutes the legally binding obligation of their respective organization or entity, enforceable in accordance with its terms.
- GG. Employee Eligibility Verification:** The CONTRACTOR warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and State statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees performing work under this CONTRACT meet the citizenship or alien status requirement set forth in Federal statutes and regulations. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain, from all employees, consultants and subCONTRACTORS performing work hereunder, all verification and other documentation of employment eligibility status required by Federal or State statutes and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 8 U.S.C. §1324 et seq., as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter amended. The CONTRACTOR shall retain all such documentation for all covered employee, consultants and subCONTRACTORS for the period prescribed by the law. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by COUNTY, and hold harmless, the COUNTY, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any other liability which may be assessed against the CONTRACTOR or the COUNTY or both in connection with any alleged violation of any Federal or State statutes or regulations pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing work under this CONTRACT.

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

HH. Indemnification: CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by COUNTY, and hold COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and those special districts and agencies which COUNTY’s Board of Supervisors acts as the governing Board (“COUNTY INDEMNITEES”) harmless from any claims, demands or liability of any kind or nature, including but not limited to personal injury or property damage, arising from or related to the services, products or other performance provided by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this CONTRACT. If judgment is entered against CONTRACTOR and COUNTY by a court of competent jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of COUNTY or COUNTY INDEMNITEES, CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that liability will be apportioned as determined by the court. Neither party shall request a jury apportionment.

II. Audits/Inspections: CONTRACTOR agrees to permit the COUNTY’s Auditor-Controller or the Auditor-Controller’s authorized representative (including auditors from a private auditing firm hired by the COUNTY) access during normal working hours to all books, accounts, records, reports, files, financial records, supporting documentation, including payroll and accounts payable/receivable records, and other papers or property of CONTRACTOR for the purpose of auditing or inspecting any aspect of performance under this CONTRACT. The inspection and/or audit will be confined to those matters connected with the performance of the CONTRACT including, but not limited to, the costs of administering the contract. The COUNTY will provide reasonable notice of such an audit or inspection.

The COUNTY reserves the right to audit and verify the CONTRACTOR’s records before final payment is made.

CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum of three years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated under this CONTRACT or by law. CONTRACTOR agrees to allow interviews of any employees or others who might reasonably have information related to such records.

Further, CONTRACTOR agrees to include a similar right to the COUNTY to audit records and interview staff of any sub-CONTRACTOR related to performance of CONTRACT.

Should the CONTRACTOR cease to exist as a legal entity, the CONTRACTOR’s records pertaining to this CONTRACT shall be forwarded to the surviving entity in a merger or acquisition or, in the event of liquidation, to the COUNTY’s PROJECT MANAGER.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

REDLINE

Formatted: Right

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto certify that they have read and understand all the terms and conditions contained herein and ~~have~~ hereby cause this CONTRACT to be executed.

***ORANGE COUNTY HUMAN RELATIONS COUNCIL**

By: _____ By: _____
 Name: _____ Name: _____
 Title: _____ Title: _____
 Dated: _____ Dated: _____

*For Contractors that are corporations, signature requirements are as follows: 1) One signature by the Chairman of the Board, the President or any Vice President; and 2) One signature by the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer or an Assistant Treasurer.

For Contractors that are not corporations, the person who has authority to bind the contractor to a contract, must sign on one of the lines above.

COUNTY OF ORANGE

A Political Subdivision of the State of California

By: _____ Dated: _____
 Dylan Wright, Director
 OC Community Resources

**APPROVED AS TO FORM
COUNTY COUNSEL**

By: _____ Dated: _____
 DEPUTY COUNTY COUNSEL

Attachment A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The mission of Orange County Human Relations Council (CONTRACTOR) is to develop and implement proactive human relations programs in partnership with schools, corporations, cities, foundations and individuals. As such, CONTRACTOR shall provide an Executive Director and appropriate staff to support the OC Human Relations Commission in the execution of its mission as set forth in the Orange County Board of Supervisors' directed resolutions.

1. Program Requirements

CONTRACTOR shall provide support staff for programs and services of the OC Human Relations Commission which may include, but not be limited to the following:

- 1.1. ~~Provide information and staff support to the Supporting~~ monthly OC Human Relations Commission meetings ~~with published minutes and agendas, in accordance with the Brown Act.~~
- 1.2. Research on relevant human relations issues such as: elimination of prejudice, intolerance, and discrimination, as well as observance of protocols for consultation with the county, cities, and community groups.
- 1.3. Relationship building with diverse communities, including facilitation of interactions with diverse communities to understand and address concerns, and programs, such as: Living Room Dialogues; Community Forums; Listening Sessions; and Intergroup and Interfaith Initiatives.
- 1.4. Follow-up on Commission decisions, as directed by the Commission, such as: support for multi-service homeless shelters; input on civilian oversight of law enforcement; respect for immigrants, refugees, and other diverse communities; free speech vs. hate speech; LGBT issues; and other issues as identified by, and as directed by, the Commission.
- 1.5. Promoting police-~~+~~community relations through police complaint handling and police-~~+~~community reconciliation in face-to-face facilitated sessions; hate crime documentation; victim support, and collaboration; police-~~+~~diverse community dialogues and training; facilitation of diverse community relations following such incidents as local area riots; and consulting on contentious human relations issues such as addressing the aftermath of high profile cases.
- 1.6. Coordination of Commissioner engagement in identified human relations initiatives, public events and advisory opportunities.
- 1.7. Resolving conflict with special skills in intergroup and multi-lingual mediation.
- 1.8. Teaching intergroup respect, collaboration, conflict resolution, and reconciliation to youth and adults.
- 1.9. Promoting the full participation of all people in the decision-making processes of the institutions which affect their lives.
- 1.10. ~~Integrate Restorative Justice Practices into outreach programs at local schools in collaboration with OC Human Relations Commission.~~

Formatted: Font color: Red, Strikethrough

- 1.11. ~~Organize an annual awards program in collaboration~~Collaborate with the OC Human Relations Commission ~~to select award recipients at CONTACTOR's annual awards program with the purpose of~~ ~~te-building~~ing understanding among diverse communities and celebratinge outstanding individuals, model community policing programs, successful school intergroup relations efforts, and exceptional business diversity programs.
- 1.12. ~~Collaborate in~~ ~~Undertake~~ ~~innovate~~ ~~innovative~~ programs including, but not limited to:
- 1.12.1. #HateFreeOC, a ~~public awareness and education~~ multi-media campaign ~~launched by the OC Human Relations Commission~~ ~~campaign~~ to proactively build awareness, understanding, and appreciation between Orange County's diverse residents. This campaign will ~~be a collaboration with the OC Human Relations Commission as well as partner with~~ local schools, community organizations, government entities, ~~OC Human Relations Council (CONTRACTOR)~~, and businesses to promote better relations among Orange County's diverse communities.
- ~~1.12.2. #IAmOC, an initiative in partnership with Chapman University to highlight the diverse people who make Orange County strong. This proactive effort is designed to develop awareness and appreciation for all Orange County residents.~~

Formatted: Font color: Red, Strikethrough

2. Quarterly Activity Matrix

Proposed Activity	1 st Quarter Planned	2 nd Quarter Planned	3 rd Quarter Planned	4 th Quarter Planned	Total
A. Monthly HRC Human Relations Commission meetings	3	3	3	3	12
B. HRC OC Human Relations Council Annual Report	0	1	0	0	1
C. Police-Community Reconciliation cases	5	5	5	5	20
D. Community-Police Meetings	1	1	1	1	4
E. Anaheim Chief's Advisory Board & Sherriff's Interfaith Council	2	2	2	2	8
F. Community Outreach & Relationship Building meetings	10	10	10	10	40
G. Police/Diverse Community Dialogues	0	1	0	1	2
H. Hate Crime Report & Network Meeting	0	0	1	0	1
I. Support to hate crime victims	2	2	2	2	8
J. Outreach efforts (speeches, presentations, etc.)	2	2	2	2	10
K. Community training on intergroup relations topics	1	1	1	1	4
L. Annual Awards program	0	0	0	1	1

M. In-Collaboration with OC Human Relations — Bridges Program (participants)	1,000	3,000	3,000	3,000	10,000
N. In-Collaboration with OC Human Relations — Restorative Justice program	0	1	1	1	3
O. Participate in community-based/outreach symposiums	0	1	1	0	2

3.0 Contractor Reporting Requirements

- 3.1 ~~CONTRACTOR shall provide~~ an annual financial audit of ~~CONTRACTOR'S services under this CONTRACT~~ to the Orange County Board of Supervisors and the public.
- 3.2 ~~CONTRACTOR shall provide~~ monthly updates about the actions of the OC Human Relations Commission to the Orange County Board of Supervisors and the public.
- 3.3 ~~CONTRACTOR shall publish~~ an annual report of activities and provide appropriate updates to the Orange County Board of Supervisors and public.

Commented [FC1]: Is this intended to reflect that the audit will cover services under the contract, or an audit of the entire non-profit?

4.0 Budget

Funds shall be used for the following items:

- 4.1 Costs related to operations, salaries and benefits, services and supplies, expenses and costs associated with providing support staff services, in accordance with Attachment B "Budget."



Attachment B
Budget
July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
OC Human Relations Council
Support of Human Relations Commission Programs & Services

Category	Full-Time Equivalent	7/1/18 - 6/30/19
Program Salaries & Benefits		
Executive Director	1.00	\$ 85,641.00
Sr. Human Relations Specialist	1.00	\$ 86,671.00
Sr. Human Relations Specialist	1.00	\$ 68,028.00
Program Salaries & Benefits Subtotal		\$ 240,340.00
Administration Salaries & Benefits		
Office Manager	0.10	\$ 4,649.00
Bookkeeper	0.10	\$ 4,425.00
Administration Salaries & Benefits Subtotal		\$ 9,074.00
Administration		
Travel/Mileage		\$ 2,586.00
Administration Subtotal		\$ 2,586.00
GRAND TOTAL		\$ 252,000.00



**Subject: OC Community Resources
Contract Reimbursement Policy**

Effective: July 1, 2010
Revised: February 28, 2017

PURPOSE:

This policy contains updated fiscal documentation requirements for contract reimbursement for OC Community Services and Housing & Community Development and Homeless Prevention. The procedures provide instructions for submitting reimbursement demand letter or invoice.

REFERENCES:

Executed Board of Supervisors approved contract
Budget included in contract or presented as an attachment
48 CFR Part 31 Contract Cost Principles and Procedures
24 CFR Parts 85, 570.502, 570.201, 576.21, 576.51 and 576.61: For Housing & Community Development and Homeless Prevention Contracts only.
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)

BACKGROUND:

The executed Board of Supervisors approved contract is the authorization for all aspects of payment, including the maximum amount to be paid, the payee, and the scope of services and work. Payments are made in strict accordance with the contract terms. Allowable costs are identified in referenced Uniform Guidance and Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).

ATTACHMENTS:

Reimbursement Policy Status Form (RPS-1)

POLICY:

Contractor is responsible for the submission of accurate claims. This reimbursement policy is intended to ensure that the Contractor is reimbursed based on the code or codes that correctly describe the services provided. This information is intended to serve only as a general reference resource regarding OC Community Services' and Housing & Community Development and Homeless Prevention reimbursement policy for the services described and is not intended to address every aspect of a reimbursement situation. Accordingly, OC Community Services and Housing & Community Development and Homeless Prevention may use reasonable discretion in interpreting and applying this policy to services provided in a particular case. Other factors affecting reimbursement may supplement, modify or, in some cases, supersede this policy. These factors may include, but are not limited to: legislative mandates and County directives. OC Community Services and Housing & Community Development and Homeless Prevention may modify this reimbursement policy at any time by publishing a new version of the policy. However, the information presented in this policy is accurate and current as of the date of publication.

Cost incurred by Contractor must be substantiated and incurred during the contract period. Total of all reimbursements cannot exceed the amount of the contract. Cost must be allowable under applicable Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) or Uniform Guidance. All supporting documentation for reimbursement must be submitted with demand letter or invoice. If contract

requires matching contribution, documentation substantiating contribution match must be submitted with demand letter or invoice.

At any time, based on County's business needs and/or Contractor's performance, the County may designate Contractor to submit abbreviated or comprehensive documentation, as identified in the respective sections. Upon designation, Contractor will be notified, in writing via Reimbursement Policy Status Form, of which requirements are in full force. When Contractor is required to submit comprehensive documentation, in addition to the items identified in the Abbreviated Documentation Requirements Section, Contractor must also provide the documentation identified in the Comprehensive Documentation Requirements Section.

PROCEDURES:

Abbreviated Documentation Requirements

Compile and submit:

1. Supporting documentation includes, but is not limited to:
 - a. General ledger/expense transaction report
 - b. Payroll register or labor distribution report
 - c. Payroll allocation plan
 - d. Personnel Documentation
 - e. Benefit plan and calculation of benefit
 - f. Employer-employee contract for non-customary benefits (if applicable)
 - g. Pre-approval documentation for equipment purchases equal to or greater than \$5,000
2. The following is required with the first month's invoice only:
 - a. Cost allocation plan for rent, utilities, etc.
 - b. Indirect rate approved by cognizant agency (if applicable)
3. Summary of leveraged resources (if applicable)
4. Demand letters must contain the following certification (if required by Contract):

"I certify under the penalty of perjury that this claim is true and correct and that the requested payments have been made. I also certify that this claim agrees with our official payroll and financial records and that these amounts have not been, or will not be claimed from any other funding source"
5. Grantee Performance Report (if required by Contract)
6. Supporting documentation shall be on single-sided sheets
7. Please redact employees' Social Security Number from payroll reports
8. Demand letter or invoice, along with supporting documentation shall be submitted to:

OC Community Resources Accounting
1770 N. Broadway, 4th Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92706

Comprehensive Documentation Requirements

In addition to abbreviated documentation, compile and submit:

9. Purchase orders, invoices, and receipts
10. Cashed checks
11. Check register
12. Consultant/sub-contractor invoices (with description of services)
13. Travel expense documentation: mileage reimbursement, hotel bill, meal reimbursement

ACTION:

Distribute this policy to all appropriate staff

INQUIRIES:

**Inquiries may be directed to OCCR Accounts Payable at:
OCCRAccountsPayable@occr.ocgov.com**

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION

Company/Organization Name

Orange County Human Relations Council

The Contractor or grant recipient named above hereby certifies compliance with Government Code 8355 in matters relating to providing a drug-free workplace. The above named Contractor will:

1. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person's or organization's workplace and specifying the actions to be taken against employees for violations of the prohibitions, as required by Government Code Section 8355(a).
2. Establish a Drug Free Awareness Program as required by Government Code Section 8355(b), to inform employees about all of the following:
 - A. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace,
 - B. The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace,
 - C. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs, and
 - D. Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
3. Provide as required by Government code Section 8355I that every employee who works on the proposed contract or grant
 - A. Will receive a copy of the company's drug-free policy statement described in paragraph (1) above, and
 - B. Will agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment in the contract or grant.

CERTIFICATION

I, the official named below, hereby swear that I am duly authorized legally to bind the contractor or grant recipient to the above described certification.

Official's Name

Orange

Date Executed

Executed in the County of Orange

Contractor or Grantee Recipient Signature and Title